
1 

 

MINUTES 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

 

 

Present: Mayor Ralph Moore, Councilmembers Angelette Mealing, Shirley Jackson, Brian 

Jones, and Vince Williams, City Attorney Dennis Davenport, City Manager Steve 

Rapson, City Clerk Jacqueline R. Cossey and Assistant City Clerk Tameca P. White 

 

I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: 

 

Invocation by Councilmember Shirley Jackson  

 

II. MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC TO DISCUSS ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: (2 MIN.) 

 

Public comments were made by the following: 

 

Bob Croom of 6242 Longino Drive addressed comments made during the January 17
th

 Council 

Meeting regarding the Ariston Waiters incident. 

 

Yvonne Barber of 6385 Church Street brought forth a formal criminal complaint against Officer 

Prentice Brooks, Polly Miller, Terry Stevens and Sergeant Greg Gross for gross/explicit 

misconduct, blatant/ flagrant misconduct, false arrest, assault, illegal search and seizure, gross 

harassment, police brutality, failure to read rights, violation of an oath of an officer, grand theft, 

theft by taking, cash stolen from license holder, criminal trespassing and corruption surrounding  

an incident  occurring on October 26, 2011.     She further stated that she emailed a complaint 

referencing the harassment to the City Manager, Steve Rapson and he failed to act on it.  She 

then stated that she would like to add a formal complaint for the following: corruption, malice, 

aforethought, corrupt rough police, Union City Police Department, criminal police misconduct, 

harassment, racial profiling by Patrolman M. Carvino, badge number 964.         

 

III. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS OF AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS:   

  

1. Mayor Ralph Moore’s State of the City Address 

 

 At this time Mayor Ralph Moore delivered his State of the City Address. (See  

Attachment to official minutes)   

 

  2. City Clerk receives Master Clerk Certification on behalf of GMA and the Carl Vinson 

Institute of Government  

 

   Councilman Vince Williams provided the history of the Georgia Municipal & County 

Clerks/Finance Officers Program.  He then presented Mrs. Cossey with her Clerk Masters 

Completion Certificate followed by a photo. 

 

 

 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:   



2 

 

 

All matters listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Council and 

will be approved by one motion.  No separate discussion will take place on these 

items.  If discussion of any Consent Agenda item is desired, the item will be moved 

to the Regular Agenda for separate consideration. 

    

 1. Approval of the minutes:   Worksession Meeting, 01/09/2012 

Regular Council Meeting, 01/17/2012 

 

2. Council to consider approval of a Mutual Aid Agreement with the City of College Park to provide 

mutual aid to each other and render supplemental fire prevention.      

 

3. Council to consider approval of the Dendreon traffic study completed by the Police Department. 

 

4. Council to approve name change for Gladys Knight Lane to Citizens Lane. 

 

On motion of Councilmember Williams seconded by Councilmember Jones and carried,  

the consent agenda was unanimously approved.   
 

V. OLD BUSINESS:  None. 

 

VI. REGULAR/NEW BUSINESS:   

 

1. Public Hearing to consider demolishing the property located at 5148 Hilltop Drive. 

 

 Mr. David Mundt, building inspector, addressed the Council and stated that he is 

requesting to demolish an unsafe building located at 5148 Hilltop Drive.  He added 

that he inspected the residence on November 30, 2011; however, he did not make an 

entry into the structure and all observations were made from the exterior of the 

structure and through windows and doors.  He further added that the site conditions 

are not sanitary and debris and garbage are surrounding the exterior structure.  Mr. 

Mundt stated that the building to the right of the structure is failing.  He added that the 

roof is failing and the walls are beginning to collapse.  He further added that the eaves 

of the roof lines have extensive wood rots and there is extensive damage to the roof 

leaks.  Mr. Mundt stated that he found evidence of rodent infestation and windows 

were broken out.  He added that the doors are being used as windows and the structure 

is not fit for human habitation.   He further added that the cost to repair this structure is 

estimated at $75,000.00 although the appraised value of the structure is $35,000.00.  

Mr. Mundt then stated that this is more than 50% of the appraised value.  He then 

recommended demolition of the structure and all disturbed areas be seeded and 

grassed.  He then shared photos of the structure with the Mayor and Council.     

 

Public hearing opened. 

 

No one came forward. 

 

Public hearing closed.  

 

 Councilmember Williams stated that he visited the property and he can do nothing but 

support Mr. Mundt.  He then stated that he would support giving the property owner 



3 

 

30 days to demolish the property and after that the City will take care of it and place a 

lien on the property.   

 

On motion of Councilmember Williams seconded by Councilmember Jackson and carried, the 

property owners were given 30-days to demolish the property. 

 

2. Public Hearing to consider demolishing the property located at 6583 Clayborn 

Avenue. 

 

 Mr. Mundt also led this discussion and stated that he inspected this residence located 

at 6583 Clayborn Avenue on December 14, 2011 and the exterior is missing siding on 

the left side in the back.  He added that the roof eaves are showing signs of wood rot 

and the porch rail and steps are not to code and need support.   He further added that 

the rear porch is showing signs of wood rot and the basement is not secure which 

allows for pest and rodents to enter the structure.  Mr. Mundt continued stating that the 

plumbing has severe problems with the drainage system and the water distribution.  

He added that there are also electrical problems.  He stated that the appraised value of 

this home is $75,600.00 and the cost to repair this structure is close to $51,000.00.  He 

added that this amount is more than 50% of the appraised value; therefore, his 

recommendation is to demolish the structure and all debris cleaned and disturbed areas 

be seeded and grassed.     

 

Public hearing opened. 

 

Naveda Arnold Folts spoke on behalf of the property owner, her mother.  She spoke in 

opposition of demolishing the property as some of the issues have already been 

addressed and repaired. 

 

Councilmember Mealing asked which items were repaired. 

 

Mrs. Folts stated that the roof has been repaired and the yard is clean. 

 

Councilmember Jackson asked if anyone was currently living there. 

 

Mrs. Folts stated that no one is living there, as her mother is visiting her in Hawaii, but 

her sibling are looking after the place. 

 

Public hearing closed.  

 

At this time Mayor Moore recommended granting 120 days.  He stated that the 

property must me secured within 30 days and the Council must receive a written 

report from code enforcement stating that that the property has been secured and once 

that has occurred there will be an additional 90 days to bring the property to code.   

 

On motion of Councilmember Williams seconded by Councilmember Jones and carried,  

the aforementioned recommendation was unanimously approved.   
 

3. Public Hearing to consider demolishing the property located at 6586 Clayborn 

Avenue.  

 



4 

 

 Mr. Mundt stated that he inspected the property located at 6586 Clayborn Avenue on 

November 30, 2011.  He added that the site conditions were not sanitary, trash and 

debris were all around the structure, there were changes daily because people were 

coming and taking things and bringing some things back in the yard.  He further added 

that this structure is being used as the neighborhood hangout.  Mr. Mundt stated that 

he observed people going in and out while he was there.  He added that the exterior of 

the structure is not protecting the structure.  He further added that the decks and 

porches are dangerous for anyone to enter.  Mr. Mundt stated that the windows and 

doors are not secure and are missing the proper latches and screens and the siding is 

not installed properly.  He added that the electrical service is not up to code and 

extension cords are running from one structure to another.  He further added that the 

roof is leaking and there is evidence of rodents in the structure and it is not fit for 

human habitation.  He then concluded that the structure could not be brought up to 

code without being demolished and the cost to rebuild the structure is about 

$54,000.00.  He added that the appraised value is $10,100.00 which is more than 50% 

of the appraised value; therefore, he recommends demolition of the structure. 

 

 Councilmember Mealing asked if anyone was living in the structure. 

 

 Mr. Mundt stated that it was hard to tell. 

 

 Councilmember Jones stated that it looks like somebody was trying to fix it up.   

 

 Mr. Mundt stated that he went on two separate days and there were materials there one 

day that were not the second day so it was hard to tell because people were coming 

and going and it looked to be some kind of a hang out.      

 

Public hearing opened. 

 

Emanuel Miley of 6586 Clayborn Avenue spoke in opposition of demolishing the 

property although it is in foreclosure.   

 

Public hearing closed.  

 

 Councilmember Williams stated that he has seen the property and in light of all of the 

code violations and the fact that it is already going through foreclosure, he would 

recommend giving the owner 30-days to demolish the structure or the City will do so 

and place a lien on the property.    

 

On motion of Councilmember Williams seconded by Councilmember Jackson and carried, 

the aforementioned recommendation was unanimously approved.  
 

4. Public Hearing to consider application submitted by Gwendolyn Yvonne Jenkins 

Reese for a license for a license for package sales of malt and vinous liquors for 

Yasmins on 29 located at 6715 Roosevelt Highway, Union City, GA. 

 

City Planner Ann Lippmann led this discussion and stated that this is the first request 

that she has received for an alcoholic beverage license at this address.  She added that 

it is a grocery store.  She further added that the application was submitted in 

December of 2011 and has been reviewed by our City Attorney’s office and found to 



5 

 

be in proper legal form.  Mr. Lippmann stated that the annual license fee will be 

$2,500.00 and staff recommends approval of this request. She concluded that the 

petitioner was present for any questions  

 

Public hearing opened. 

 

No one came forward. 

 

Public hearing closed.  

 

On motion of Councilmember Williams seconded by Councilmember Mealing and carried,  

the aforementioned recommendation was unanimously approved.   
 

VII. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION:  None. 

 

 OTHER BUSINESS:   

 

City Manager Reports:   

  

At this time City Manager Steve Rapson provided the following updates: 

 

 Chief John Mansch is undergoing surgery tomorrow  

 He opened an internal investigation regarding Ms. Barber’s complaints, but 

found the allegations to be warrantless 

 Informal gathering in the break room on behalf of Councilmember Jones and 

Williams 

   

VIII. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL: 

  

Councilmember Jackson stated that she was glad that Councilmember Williams and 

Jones were back in office. 

 

Councilman Williams thanked Union City, staff and the Mayor.  He concluded that he 

does not know where we would be without Mayor Moore’s leadership and vision. 

 

Councilmen Jones thanked staff for everything that they do every day for the City and 

its’ residents.  

 

Mayor Moore stated that in trying times, the cream rises to the top and he is looking 

for a great 2012 and he can see it in the eyes of the staff as they are excited and they 

are ready to make 2012 much better than 2011. 

 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

On motion of Councilmember Williams seconded by Councilmember Mealing and 

carried, the meeting was adjourned. 
 

 

 



6 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Jacqueline R. Cossey, City Clerk   Ralph Moore, Mayor  

 












	Regular Council Minutes 02-21-2012
	State of City Address.pdf

